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Board of Directors Statement>




In the Name of Allah, Most Gracious, Most Merciful

Speech of the Board of Directors

Honorable Shareholders,
Distinguished Guests,

At the outset of our meeting, it is our pleasure on behalf of myself, and the members of the Board
of Directors of the Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting, “KCPC” to wel-
come you to your company. We have seized this opportunity to present to you KCPC’s annual report,
through which we highlight the various achievements accomplished during the financial year end-
ing on 31/12/2024.

This report reflects KCPC’s comprehensive financial results, which were achieved by the grace of
Allah and through the dedicated efforts of all departments and divisions of KCPC.

Their commitment to collaboration, coordination, and teamwork, under the supervision of the Board
of Directors, has been instrumental in successfully implementing KCPC's strategy and attaining the
best possible outcomes that we had envisioned and aspired to achieve.

Esteemed Attendees,

One of the most fundamental principles adopted by the Board of Directors is safeguarding the in-
terests of our shareholders and maintaining their valued trust in us. They are a cornerstone of our
success and a strong pillar in overcoming challenges and difficulties that may arise in KCPC'’s oper-
ational journey.

Therefore, at KCPC, we follow a clear approach that relies on comprehensive studies conducted by
specialized teams to avoid any risks or uncertainties that could negatively impact our company’s sol-
id financial position. We adhere to this approach with full transparency and credibility to ensure that
our company remains strong in an intensely competitive market, not only due to market conditions
but also due to the nature of our business.

Financial Revenues:
Esteemed Shareholders,

Over the past year, KCPC has successfully achieved many of the targeted objectives outlined in our
strategic plan. The company has demonstrated its ability to maintain stability and competitiveness,
supported by a consistently positive financial performance in the market.

This success is reflected in the strong financial returns achieved, as well as the company’s distin-
guished reputation, strict adherence to regulations, and commitment to high quality execution in its
projects.

e



These factors ensure the protection and growth of shareholders’ rights while continuously striving
for excellence. Below are the key financial results achieved:

- Total revenue reached KD 39.6 million by the end of 2024, compared to KD 31.8 million in the previous
year,2023.

» Net profit amounted to KD 4.24 miillion in 2024, compared to KD 2.48 miillion in 2023.

- Earnings per share (EPS) stood at Fils 33.44 per share in 2024, compared to Fils 19.58 per share in
2023.

All financial statements and reports related to the company’s activities and operations, as discussed
during the Board of Directors meeting held on March 16, 2025, have been reviewed. The Board reaf-
firms its commitment to the accuracy and integrity of these financial statements and reports.

Completed Projects in 2024:
Dear esteemed attendees,

At KCPC, we continue to move forward with confidence, guided by a well-defined strategy under the
vision of the Board of Directors.With the dedicated efforts of our exceptional team across all fields,
the company has successfully executed all businesses and projects as well as the various activities.

Thanks to Allah and the expertise and commitment of our workforce, we have achieved remarkable
success.

Among our most notable accomplishments are:

1. Handing over of the design, construction, execution, and maintenance of aircraft hangars and
storage facilities for Abdullah Al-Mubarak Air Base and Nawaf Al-Ahmad Air Base for the Ministry of
Defense.

The project was completed at the scheduled time and with high-quality standards.

2. The continuation of execution of the additional packages (the external works and signage instal-
lations) at the Scientific Center Project.

3. Ongoing execution of the soil remediation project in North Kuwait for Kuwait Oil Company, achiev-
ing significant progress beyond the planned schedule.

4. Participation in multiple tenders for the Public Authority for Housing Welfare, securing the lowest
bids for some of them.

Contracts for these tenders are expected to be signed in the upcoming phase, with the execution
set to commence in 2025.

5. We have been awarded a subcontract for the asphalt works on the main roads in South Saad
Al-Abdullah from a leading international company, with a contract value of KD 37,296,625 and exe-

cution has already begun.



Plants:

One of the key reasons which contributed to KCPC's success is its focus on diversifying its sources
of revenue. This has been achieved through strong returns generated from its concrete and asphalt
production plants, along with modern facilities built on its own plots of land. These facilities serve as
a vital support pillar for the company, given their outstanding reputation for advanced technology
and high quality materials that enable them to compete effectively in the market.

Both the asphalt and concrete plants are considered among the most distinguished in Kuwait, ex-
celling in both production volume and superior quality.

The positive indicators from last year’s performance give us even greater confidence in achieving
future milestones and even better results.

The Commercial Sector:

The commercial sector of the Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction & Contracting plays
a crucial and active role in the company’s success, contributing through a range of completed pro-
jects, including swimming pools of various sizes and designs, elevators and escalators, including
installation, execution, and maintenance contracts.

These business segments provide sustainable and continuous revenue streams, while also ensuring
optimal workforce utilization.

By the grace of Allah, and thanks to the dedication and hard work of our teams, we have success-
fully executed numerous contracts and are currently working at an accelerated pace on ongoing
contracts across Kuwait, engaging with both the public and private sectors.

Additionally, we are focusing on newly developed areas, which remain a key target in our expansion
plans.

Our commitment to meeting the required specifications and contractual conditions reinforces the
trust among our clients, ensuring that KCPC consistently delivers high-quality services.

Furthermore, our marble division is recognized for its exceptional quality, offering products in vari-
ous premium types, colors, and sizes that cater to the preferences of our valued customers.

We aspire to increase KCPC's market share with the support of our Board of Directors, as well as the
collective efforts of our teams, who work together as a fully integrated unit.



I Corporate Governance, Standards, and Guidelines: //ﬁ,:

In line with our commitment to transparency and integrity, KCPC remains dedicated to implement-
ing a strong corporate governance culture, ensuring full compliance with the guidelines and regula-
tions issued by the Capital Markets Authority and Kuwait Boursa.

The company adopts multiple strategies and communication channels to keep investors, sharehold-
ers, and stakeholders fully informed and engaged in its activities, while also ensuring mechanisms
that protect their rights.

Furthermore, KCPC upholds the principles of neutrality and integrity in decision-making, while en-
suring a clear distribution of responsibilities within the Board of Directors to reinforce oversight
functions and mitigate conflicts of interest.

The company also implements rigorous monitoring and reporting procedures to oversee its opera-
tions and activities, relying on professional reports to make well-informed decisions.
A detailed breakdown of these governance practices can be found in the 2024 Governance Report.

KCPC and the Community :

Since Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction & Contracting (KCPC) is an integral part of the
Kuwaiti society, we remain committed to contributing to the country’s social and economic develop-
ment. This commitment is reflected in the Board of Directors’ strategy, which aligns the company’s
goals with the diverse needs of the community.

KCPC has actively engaged in various humanitarian initiatives in collaboration with trusted organi-
zations, such as: the Kuwait Red Crescent Society, the Central Blood Bank, contributing to the Iftar
Project, providing meals during Ramadan financial support for several Kuwaiti charitable and hu-
manitarian organizations, enabling them to fulfill their mission of empowering individuals, fostering
generosity, and promoting environmental sustainability.

Additionally, the company remains ready to participate in initiatives that drive social progress and
enhance the well-being of the community.

A detailed overview of these efforts is available in the 2024 Governance Report.



Plans and Strategies :

Since its establishment, KCPC’s Boards of Directors have been dedicated to playing an active and
vital role in building Kuwait and handing over public and private projects with the highest standards
of integrity and professionalism and in a way that consolidates the confidence of our clients at dif-
ferent levels.

Accordingly, the best results were achieved, and we gained the most important element of success,
which is mutual trust with our clients.

This mutual trust is the most valuable achievement we have secured, and it stems from our commit-
ment to applying the highest standards of quality, integrity, environmental and social responsibility
in accordance with the specifications and conditions, and providing expert guidance and consul-
tation whenever necessary, as part of our ethical and professional duty toward our valued clients,
while maintaining the protection of environment and its components.

Since KCPC has played a major and recognized role in supporting the Kuwait Vision 2035 strategy,
particularly through the execution of infrastructure and oil sector projects and other projects, we
remain committed to environmental and social sustainability, ensuring that our projects benefit
both the environment and the community while aligning with our corporate governance framework
and strategic plan, to secure execution of its projects with the entire transparency to maintain KCPC
reputation and the sustainability of the quality of its business.

Furthermore, we confirm to you our commitment to increasing profitability, ensuring sustainable
revenue growth, and continuously delivering value to our esteemed shareholders who deserve
nothing but the best from us.

The Board of Directors’ Recommendations to the General Assembly :

Honorable attendees,

Based on the foregoing, the Board of Directors recommends that the General Assembly of the Ku-
wait Company for Process Plant Construction & Contracting “KCPC"” to approve the following :

- Distribution of cash dividends at a rate of 15% of the nominal value per share, equivalent to Fils 15
per share, to shareholders registered in the company’s records as of the maturity date, in accord-
ance with applicable laws.

- Distribution of bonus shares at a rate of 5% of the paid and issued capital, equivalent to 5 shares
for every 100 shares, to shareholders registered in the company’s records as of the maturity date, in
accordance with applicable regulations.

- Approval of the remuneration for the Board of Directors for the financial year ending 31 December
2024, with a total amount of Kuwaiti Dinars 48,000 only.



In Conclusion ... Honorable Attendees,

On behalf of myself and the esteemed members of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend my
deepest gratitude and appreciation to all of you, as well as to everyone who has placed their trust in
us and provided support to the company and its executive management.

Special thanks go to our valued clients and loyal partners who have contributed to the success of
KCPC's business plans and to achieving these remarkable results over the past year, thanks to their
confidence and unwavering support. Further, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to the
Board of Directors, the executive management, and all employees across the various company’s di-
visions for their tremendous and fruitful efforts.

Their commitment and dedication, under all circumstances, in carrying out their responsibilities
with the utmost integrity have been instrumental in achieving these accomplishments.

Furthermore, we extend our gratitude to everyone who has engaged with KCPC and placed their
trust in us, as well as to the regulatory authorities in the State of Kuwait for their vigilance and posi-
tive oversight, which have significantly contributed to the effective realization of our objectives and
the success we celebrate today.

It is also our great honor, on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Kuwait Company for Process
Plant Construction & Contracting “KCPC” to express our profound gratitude and appreciation to
our wise leadership, led by His Highness the Amir of the State of Kuwait, Sheikh Meshal Al Ahmad
Al Jaber Al Sabah, may Allah protect and bless him, His Highness the Crown Prince, Sheikh Sabah
Al Khaled Al Hamad Al sabah, may Allah protect him, and His Highness the Prime Minister, Sheikh
Ahmed Abdullah Al Ahmad Al Sabah.

We wish them continued success in leading our beloved Kuwait toward a future of greater prosper-
ity and growth.

May Allah, the Almighty, bless Kuwait, its people, and all those who reside on its land with peace and

security, and may He continue to bestow His grace and protection upon us. Indeed, He is the Most
High, the All Powerful.

Best regards.

Do gty Jateadl oLid 2028

HEHE
. The Kawait Company For
€2 Process Piant Const. & Cont. K.p.s.c.

.

Marwan Ahmed Mohyi ElDeen Salamah
Chairman
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Projects and Achievements




Significant Achievements in 2024

' Contract with China Gezhouba Group Company Limited

Successfully signed a contract with China Gezhouba Group Company Limited for asphalt
works (supply and apply) for their project in South Saad Al-Abdullah, with a value of around
KD 37 million.

' Contract No. 1254

We are set to be awarded Tender 2024/2025 - 1254 for the construction, completion, and
maintenance of roadworks and infrastructure networks for residential neighborhoods in
the South Saad Al-Abdullah Residential City (KD 89,643,970).

' Contract No. 1642720

Successfully signed contract 1642720 with the Ministry of Defense for the maintenance
of roads within Kuwait Army Camps and the connecting roadways (KD 2,864,102). The
project was completed and handed over in 2024.

| The Scientific Center project

Handed over the works for the Scientific Center project and are currently in negotiations
to sign a contract for the construction of the Children’s Museum, along with additional
work orders valued at around KD 8 million for the same client.

' Ministry of Defense project

Successfully Handed over Ministry of Defense project for design, construction of aircraft
hangers and warehouses for Abdullah Al-Mubarak and Nawaf AL-Ahmad Air Base.

&



Significant Achievements in 2024




Ongoing Projects

KOC Contract No: 21056717

KOC Contract No: 21056717 Excavation, Transportation and Remediation North of Kuwait
Project (Zone-2)

This project is part of an Environmental Rehabilitation Program Under United Nations

Legislation. The Project objective is to perform excavation and transportation to designated
areas, remediation of contaminated soils, and waste disposal/landfilling.

KOC Contract No. 21056775

KOC Contract Number 21056775 Drainage, Sewage and STP Services in Company’s
Operation Areas in Kuwait.

PAAET Contract No. H/UAE/99-2018/2019

PAAET Contract No. H/UAE/2019/2018-99 Comprehensive Civiland Mechanical maintenance
works for all colleges and centers affiliated with the Public Authority for Applied Education
and Training (Area One).



Ongoing Projects
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<Corporate Social Responsibility>




KCPC has activities that aim to achieve a balance between the Company’s objectives
and the community’s objectives.

The Company has implemented numerous initiatives in the field of social responsibil-
ity by utilizing environmentally friendly and public-health preservation materials and
supplies, as well as internal energy-saving tools.

Moreover, the Company ensures the implementation of waste disposal systems in
all its projects in an environmentally safe manner through contracts with specialized
companies for recycling the Company’s waste in projects.

Further, the company has undertaken social initiatives during this year, including fi-
nancial donations to aid those affected by the aggressive bombing in Lebanon, con-
tributing to the Fasting “Iftar” Project in collaboration with Kuwait Food and Relief
Bank, and a blood donation campaign at the company’s headquarters in cooperation
with Kuwait Blood Bank.

Furthermore, KCPC has provided financial support to many disadvantaged individ-
uals through the numerous Kuwaiti charitable and humanitarian committees; this
contributes positively to building qualified individuals capable of giving back to soci-
ety and other endeavors.

"
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The Kuwait Company for Pracess Plant Construction and Contracting K.S.C.P.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion g

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and
Contracting K.5.C.P. (“the Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of income,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition

The Group recognized revenue from construction projects
of KD 31 million during the year (2023: KD 23 million). The
construction industry is characterized by contract risk with
significant judgements involved in the assessment of both
current and future contract financial performance.

In reference to the accounting policy in note 2.3.14 to
these consolidated financial statements, revenue from civil
construction and service contracts is recognized using the
percentage of completion method which is an input
method. The stage of completion is measured based on the
total costs incurred as a proportion of the estimated total
costs to be performed. This requires significant judgement
from management in determining the assessment of the
work performed, valuation of contract variations and
claims; the completeness and accuracy of forecast costs to
complete; and the ability to deliver contracts within
forecast timescales. Actual results of contracts may
significantly differ from estimates. Dependent on the level
of judgement in each, the range on each contract can be
individually material. In addition, changes in these
judgements, and the related estimates, as contracts
progress can result in material adjustments to revenue and
profit margins. Accordingly, we considered this as a key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

o We obtained an understanding of the process adopted by
management to determine the amount of revenue to be
recognised during the year, including the relevant controls
in this process.

We assessed the design and implementation of internal
controls over the determination of the contract percentage
of completion, including the completeness and accuracy of
the forecast cost to complete, and tested the controls to
determine if they were operating effectively.

We selected a sample of revenue contracts in orderto
challenge both current and future financial performance.

We assessed of the cost to complete forecasts methods.

We assessment of the Group’s ability to deliver contracts
within budgeted cost and timescales and any exposures to
liquidated damages for late delivery of contract work by
inspecting performance reports, legal reports, and
correspondence with customers.

We tested the existence and valuation of claims and
variations costs by inspecting correspondence with
customers.

e We assessed of management’s estimates to determine any
indication of future losses.

We assessed management’s estimates of warranty costs.
We assessed the disclosures relating to revenue in the
consolidated financial statements against the requirements
of IFRS Accounting Standards .




Deloitte.

The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting K.S.C.P.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Fair value of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties are carried at KD 10.5
million in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2024 and the net fair value gain
presented in the consolidated statement of income
amounted to KD 3.3 million. The Group measures its
investment properties at fair value.

The determination of the fair value of these investment
properties is based on valuations performed by external
valuers using either the market comparable approach or
the capitalized income approach.

The Group's discounted future cash flows analysis and the
assessment of the expected remaining holding period and
income projections on the existing operating assets
requires management to apply significant judgements and
make significant estimates related to future rental rates,
capitalization rates and discount rates.

The existence of significant estimation uncertainty
warrants specific audit focus in this area as any bias or
error in determining the fair value could lead to a material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements.
Consequently, we have determined this to be a key audit
matter.

Refer to note 6 of these consolidated financial statements
for further details relating to this matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

° We obtained an understanding of the process adopted by
management to determine the fair value of investment
properties, including the relevant controls in this process.

e We assessed the abovementioned controls to determine if
they had been appropriately designed and implemented.

e We assessed the external valuer's skills, competence,

objectivity and capabilities and read their terms of

engagement with the Group to determine that the scope of
their work was sufficient for audit purposes.

We agreed the total valuation in the valuers report to the

amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

We tested the data provided to the valuer by the Group,

on a sample basis.

We tested the valuation of selected properties performed

by the external valuers and assessed whether the valuation

of the properties was performed in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS Accounting Standards.

We utilized our internal specialist to perform the testing

referred to above for properties which are located outside

Kuwait.

Where we identified estimates that were outside

acceptable parameters, we discussed these with the

valuers and management to understand the rationale
behind the estimates made.

o We performed sensitivity analyses on the significant

assumptions to evaluate the extent of their impact on the

determination of fair values.

We reperformed the arithmetical

determination of fair value.

e We assessed the disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements relating to this matter against the
reqguirements of IFRS Accounting Standards.

accuracy of the

Impairment of hotel

As at 31 December 2024, property plant and equipment
includes a hotel recorded in the hyperinflationary
subsidiary located in Lebanon with a carrying amount of KD
4.4 million (2023: KD 3.8 million).

The hotel incurred losses in the current and prior years,
which is an indication of impairment. Management of the
group, with the assistance of an independent valuer,
determined the recoverable value of the hotel based on
fair value less costs to sell, and it was concluded that the
hotel’s recoverable amount exceeded its carrying amount.
Accordingly no impairment charged was recognised in
profit or loss during the year (2023: nil).

The determination of the fair value less cost to sell assume
the conversion of the hotel to office spaces. The fair value
of the office spaces was identified using the market
comparable approach. The Group’s assessment of the cost
to sell including the conversion of the hotel to office spaces
requires management to apply significant judgements.
Consequently, we identified this matter as a key audit
matter.

Refer to note 5 of these consolidated financial statements
for further details relating to this matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

o We obtained an understanding of the process adopted by
management to determine the fair value of the hotel,
including the relevant controls in this process.

We assessed the abovementioned controls to determine if
they had been appropriately designed and implemented.
We tested management’s assessments of indicators
relating to the hotel’s impairment, taking into account
current business conditions and other internal and external
factors, including the financial performance of the hotel;
We assessed the skills, independence, qualifications and
objectivity of the independent valuer and read their terms
of their engagement with the Group to determine if the
scope of their work was sufficient for audit purposes;

o Together with our internal valuation specialists, we
assessed the Group's valuation methodology, assumptions
and inputs applied in determining the recoverable amount,
to determine if it was in compliance with the requirements
of IFRS Accounting Standards;

We reperformed the mathematical accuracy of the
valuation and agreeing the results of the valuation to the
amount included in the consolidated financial statements;
We assessed the disclosure in the consolidated financial
statements relating to this matter against the
requirements of IFRS Accounting Standards.
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The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting K.5.C.P.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Report on the Audit of Consalidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included in the Group's
2024 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the
report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the
remaining sections of the Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting K.S.C.P.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists, related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the Group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the Group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the Group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate to those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.




Deloitte.

The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting K.S.C.P.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated to those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated
financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors relating to these
consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we obtained all the information and
explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit; and that the consolidated financial statements incorporate all
information that is required by Companies Law No. 1 of 2016, and its executive regulations, as amended; and by the Parent
Company's Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended; that an inventory was duly carried out;
and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violation of the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016, and its executive
regulations, as amended; or of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as
amended, have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2024 that might have had a material effect on the business of
the Group or on its consolidated financial position.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, to the best of our knowledge and belief, we have not become aware
of any violations of the provisions of Law No 7 of 2010, as amended, concerning the Capital Markets Authority and its related
regulations during the year ended 31 December 2024 that might have had a material effect on the business of the Parent
Company or on its financial position.

“Bader A. AL-Wazzan
License No. 62A
Deloitte & Touche - Al Wazzan & Co.

Kuwait, 16 March 2025




The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting K.S.C.P.
And its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of 31 December 2024
(All amounts are in Kuwoiti Dinar)

Note 2024 2023
Assets
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 8,178,156 7,484,333
Investment properties 6 10,534,029 7,171,672
Investment in associates 7 1,546,550 1,665,287
Other assets 1,454 1,639
20,260,189 16,322,931
Current assets
Inventories 8 3,177,763 3,483,794
Trade receivables and other debit balances 9 16,945,287 21,463,851
Contracts assets 10 197,148 3,276,149
Cash and cash equivalents 11 13,299,473 7,342,297
33,619,671 35,566,091
Total assets 53,879,860 51,889,022
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 12 13,014,312 12,162,908
Treasury shares 12 (391,659) (384,831)
Statutory reserve 12 6,446,318 5,997,144
Voluntary reserve 12 6,415,766 5,966,592
Other reserves 13 4,212,970 3,373,716
Retained earnings 5,786,962 5,070,492
Total equity 35,484,669 32,186,021
Liabilities
Non current liabilities
Post employment benefits 3,097,457 2,712,681
Lease liabilities 14 150,659 189,218
3,248,116 2,901,899
Current liabilities
Trade payables and other credit balances 14 12,957,104 14,933,355
Contracts liabilities 10 2,189,971 1,867,747
15,147,075 16,801,102
Total liabilities 18,395,191 19,703,001
Total equity and liabilities 53,879,860 51,889,022

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

——

S

Marwan Ahmad Mohyi Aldeen Salamah
Chairman




The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting K.5.C.P.
And its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December 2024
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinor)

Note 2024 2023

Revenue 15 39,597,201 31,800,572
Cost of sales 16 (36,283,168) (28,565,585)
Gross profit 3,314,033 3,234,987
Net other operating income 17 643,611 229,867
{Provided) / Reversal of provisions and impairment 18 (383,299) 686,950
Group's share from associates results (233,062) (16,305)
Gross loss from hotel (206,682) (67,291)
General and administrative expenses 19 (2,061,994) (1,869,080)
Net gain from Investment properties 20 3,744,852 426,426
Net Monetary loss from hyperinflation 22 (2,533) (14,274)
Finance cost (6,028) (8,811)
Profit before deductions, tax and Board of Directors’ remuneration 4,808,898 2,602,469
Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS) (40,426) (23,422)
Contribution to National Labour Support Tax (NLST) (112,294) (32,067)
Contribution to Zakat (44,917) (12,827)
Tax on component (317,157) -
Board of Directors’ remuneration (48,000) (48,000)
Net profit for the year 4,246,104 2,486,153
Earnings per share (fils) 21 33.44 19.58

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting K.S.C.P.
And its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2024

(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar)

2024 2023
Net profit for the year 4,246,104 2,486,153
Other comprehensive income items:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement of income:
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations including the effect of hyperinflation ~ 839,254 506,096
Total other comprehensive income items 839,254 506,096
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,085,358 2,992,249

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting K.S.C.P.
And its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2024
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar)

Note 2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the year 4,246,104 2,486,153
Adjustments:
Change in fair value of investments properties (3,339,122) (186,851)
Group’s share of results from associates 233,062 16,305
Provisions and impairment 331,100 (686,950)
Closing of credit balances (263,855) -
Depreciation and amortization 1,447,588 2,198,157
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (4,754)
Interest Income (223,096) (176,757)
Finance cost 6,028 8,811
Post-employment benefits 480,208 303,544
Net Monetary loss from hyperinflation (2,533) 14,274
Operating profit before changing in working capital 2,910,730 3,976,686
Trade receivables and other debit balances 4,518,564 (2,058,810)
Inventories 306,031 (875,879)
Contracts assets 3,079,001 504,779
Trade payables and other credit balances (1,615,135) 835,635
Contracts liabilities 322,224 (261,160)
Post-employment benefits — paid (95,432) (289,330)
Net cash generated from operating activities 9,425,983 1,831,921
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (1,740,046) (1,415,508)
Paid to associate capital increase (52,184) -
Proceed from Interest Income 223,096 176,757
paid for acquisition of investment properties (23,235) -
Dividends income received - 65,373
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 28,056 37,179
Net cash used in investing activities (1,564,313) (1,140,199)
Cash flows from financing activities
Lease liabilities paid (70,509) (76,917)
Dividends paid (1,845,193) (2,374,703)
Paid to purchase Treasury shares (6,828) (2,478)
Payment of finance cost (6,028) (8,811)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,928,558) (2,462,909)
Net changes in cash and cash equivalents 5,933,112 (1,771,187)
Effects of foreign currency translation and generated from
hyperinflation adjustment 24,064 (123,884)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7,342,297 9,237,368
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year o 8 13,299,473 7,342,297

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting K.S.C.P.
And its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stoted)

1

Constitution and activities

The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting K.S.C.P, Kuwait (the “Parent Company”)

is a Kuwaiti shareholding company incorporated in the State of Kuwait on 24 February 1979. The Parent

Company listed in Kuwait Stock Market.

The Parents’ registered office is at P.O. Box 3404 Safat, 13035 Kuwait,

The main objectives of the Parent Company are:

o Execute civil, mechanical and electrical works.

o Import the required materials and equipment to such projects.

e Assume tasks of project management and the relevant consulting works in the field of civil, mechanical and
electrical contracting.

e Execute civil, mechanical and electrical maintenance

e Import and sale of construction materials

e Direct participation in constructing the infrastructure of the projects, residential, commercial, and
industrial projects through (B.O.T) system relevant to the Company’s objectives

e Own properties and lands necessary to carry out its business

e Manufacture and sale of asphalt and readymade concrete and its related contracting.

e Utilize financial surpluses available to the company through investment in portfolios and funds managed
by competent companies and authorities.

e Importing chemicals for the company’s operating activities

e Waste treatment including construction waste for the company’s operating activities.

The Parent Company may carry out the above business in the state of Kuwait or outside by itself or through

agency. Also, the Parent Company may have an interest or be involved in any way with the entities that are

engaged in similar activities or that may assist the Parent Company in achieving its objectives in Kuwait and

abroad. The Parent Company may also buy these entities or merge with them.

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and its

subsidiaries detailed in Note 26 (together “the Group”).

Subsequent to the financial statement date, the extraordinary general assembly meeting of the parent

company has been held on 18 January 2024 and approved change some article in the memorandum of

incorporation related to the parent company activities.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2025

and are subject to approval of shareholders at the Annual General Assembly Meeting. The General Assembly

of the shareholders have the authority to amend these consolidated financial statements after issuance.

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance (IFRS Accounting Standards) as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis adjusted for
measurement the effects of inflation where entities operate in hyperinflationary economics and modified by
the revaluation of investment properties that remeasured at fair value as stated in the below mentioned
accounting policies. These consolidated financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinars.

By the end of 2020, the economy of the Republic of Lebanon became hyperinflationary. As a result, the Group
has applied 1AS 29, and the financial results, cash flows, and financial position of the Group’s subsidiary and
associates in Lebanon have been adjusted to reflect the measuring unit current at the reporting date. The
methods used to determine fair value and the adjustments made to the accounts of the Group’s entities
operating in hyperinflationary economies are detailed in the accounting policies and the respective notes.
The Group’s accounting policies has been applied based on a similar basis to all year presented, except as
indicated in note 2.2.1 on the application of new and revised standards.




The Kuwait Company for Process Plant Construction and Contracting K.S.C.P.
And its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stated)

2.2
2.2.1

New and revised accounting standards

Effective for the current year

Following standard, interpretation or amendment are effective from the current year and are adopted by the
Group but however these does not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements of the year unless
otherwise stated below:

o Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures titled Supplier

Finance Arrangements

The amendments add a disclosure objective to IAS 7 stating that an entity is required to disclose information
about its supplier finance arrangements that enables users of financial statements to assess the effects of
those arrangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash flows.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments affect only the presentation of liabilities as current or non-current in the statement of
financial position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses,
or the information disclosed about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights that
are in existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability, explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting period, and introduce a definition of
‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

The amendments specify that only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before the end
of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date (and therefore must be considered in assessing the classification of the liability as
current or non-current). Such covenants affect whether the right exists at the end of the reporting period,
even if compliance with the covenant is assessed only after the reporting date (e.g. a covenant based on
the entity’s financial position at the reporting date that is assessed for compliance only after the reporting
date).

Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases—Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments to IFRS 16 add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback
transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be
accounted for as a sale. The amendments require the seller-lessee to determine 'lease payments' or ‘revised
lease payments' such that the seller-lessee does not recognise a gain or loss that relates to the right of use
retained by the seller-lessee, after the commencement date.

A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application, which is defined as the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applied IFRS 16.
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And its Subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar unless otherwise stoted)

2.2.2  Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has not applied the
following new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by IASB that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Standard,
interpretation,
amendments

Amendments to
IAS 21 The Effects
of Changes in
Foreign Exchange
Rates titled Lack
of Exchangeability

Amendment to
IFRS9 and IFRS 7 -
Classification and
Measurement of
Financial
Instruments

Description

The amendments specify how to assess whether a currency is
exchangeable, and how to determine the exchange rate when it is
not.

The amendments state that a currency is exchangeable into
another currency when an entity is able to obtain the other
currency within a time frame that allows for a normal
administrative delay and through a market or exchange mechanism
in which an exchange transaction would create enforceable rights
and obligations.

When a currency is not exchangeable into another currency at a
measurement date, an entity is required to estimate the spot
exchange rate at that date. An entity’s objective in estimating the
spot exchange rate is to reflect the rate at which an orderly
exchange transaction would take place at the measurement date
between market participants under prevailing economic
conditions.

The amendments do not specify how an entity estimates the spot
exchange rate to meet that objective. An entity can use an
observable exchange rate without adjustment or another
estimation technique.

These amendments:

clarify the requirements for the timing of recognition and
derecognition of some financial assets and liabilities, with a
new exception for some financial liabilities settled through an
electronic cash transfer system;

e clarify and add further guidance for assessing whether a
financial asset meets the solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) criterion;

e add new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual
terms that can change cash flows (such as some instruments
with features linked to the achievement of environment, social
and governance (ESG) targets); and

o make updates to the disclosures for equity instruments
designated at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive
Income (FVTOCI).

Effective date

1 January 2025

1 January 2026
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23.1

IFRS 18 IFRS 18 replaces IAS 1, carrying forward many of the requirements 1 January 2027
Presentation and in IAS 1 unchanged and complementing them with new

Disclosures in requirements. In addition, some IAS 1 paragraphs have been

Financial moved to IAS 8 and IFRS 7. Furthermore, the IASB has made minor

Statements amendments to IAS 7 and IAS 33 Earnings per Share.

IFRS 18 introduces new requirements to:

o present specified categories and defined subtotals in the
statement of profit or loss

o provide disclosures on management-defined performance
measures (MPMs) in the notes to the financial statements.

o improve aggregation and disaggregation.

IFRS 18 requires retrospective application within specific transition
provisions.

The board of directors of the company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements in future periods.

IFRS 19 IFRS 19 permits an eligible subsidiary to provide reduced 1January 2027
Subsidiaries disclosures when applying IFRS Accounting Standards in its
without Public financial statements. A subsidiary is eligible for the reduced
Accountability: disclosures if it does not have public accountability and its ultimate
Disclosures or any intermediate parent produces consolidated financial

statements available for public use that comply with IFRS
Accounting Standards. IFRS 19 is optional for subsidiaries that are
eligible and sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries
that elect to apply it.

An entity is only permitted to apply IFRS 19 if, at the end of the
reporting period:

o itis a subsidiary (this includes an intermediate parent)
o it does not have public accountability, and
e its ultimate or any intermediate parent produces consolidated
financial statements available for public use that comply with
IFRS Accounting Standards.
The management do not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in future periods.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and entities
controlled by the group made up to 31 December of each year. Control is achieved when the Parent Company
(a) has power over the investee (b) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and (c) has the ability to use its power to affects its returns.

The Group reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three components of controls listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group losses control over subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of income or other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Parent
Company and to the non-controlling interest. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in thg non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Parent
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized in consolidated statement of income
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary. The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under IFRS 9, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses combination are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in consolidated statement of income as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except deferred tax assets or liabilities, liabilities or equity instruments related
to share based payment arrangements and assets that are classified as held for sale in which cases they are
accounted for in accordance with the related IFRS.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in consolidated statement of income as a bargain purchase gain.
Non-controlling interests may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests'
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (the date when the Group obtains control) and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in consolidated statement of income. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to consolidated statement of income where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed off.

Goodwill
Goodwill, arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of
the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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2.3.2

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
{or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
consolidated statement of income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted in order to recognise the changes in the Group's share of net
assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date.

Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the investment’s carrying amount and is
neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment. The consolidated statement of income reflects the
Group's share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those
investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCL. In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest
in the associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of results of an associate and a joint venture is shown on top of the
consolidated statement of income off the operating profit and also represents the profit or loss after deducting
tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture. The financial statements
of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
impairment loss on its investment in the associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is an objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is
impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, then recognises the loss as
‘Impairment of an associate or a joint venture’ in the consolidated statement of income.

The group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate or a joint venture. Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture, upon loss of significant influence or joint control, and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historic cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. Historical cost of an item of property and equipment comprises its acquisition cost and all
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.
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Capital work in progress is carried at cost less impairment losses, if any and transferred to the related asset
category when ready for its intended use.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each financial year end.

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 10-50 years
Equipment, Heavy Equipment and Vehicles 2-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 2-5 years

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term and the useful life of the
underlying asset.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each statement of financial position date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment in its carrying value. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).An
impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income, being the difference between carrying
value and the asset’s recoverable amount.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows.

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that
reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an
asset that does not generate cash flows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of income to
the extent that it eliminates the impairment loss which has been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Investment property

Land and buildings held for the purpose of capital appreciation and/or for capital appreciation and not
occupied by the Group is classified as investment properties. Investment property is carried at fair value,
representing the open market value determined periodically by external valuers. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of its specific
assets. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
in less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair value are included in the
consolidated statement of income.

Fair values of investment properties are determined by appraisers having an appropriate recognised
professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Raw materials cost is determined on 2
weighted average cost basis. The cost of finished goods includes direct materials, direct labour and fixed and
variable manufacturing overhead, and other costs incurred in bringing inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling prices less all the estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through consolidated statement of income) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through statement of
income are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of income.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCL:

o The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial

recognition of a financial asset:

o The Group may irrevocably elect to classifying in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if certain criteria are met; and

o The Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant periods.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated
by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the
debt instrument on initial recognition.
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The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial
asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequently
at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Foreign exchange gains and losses
The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

The group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses trade receivables and contract assets. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group applied the simplified approach and measure the loss allowance for receivable at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on receivable are estimated using a provision matrix by reference
to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors
operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date.

The Group writes off receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in serve financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the receivable are over two years past due.

The Group applies the general approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, for
financial instruments in Cash and bank balances. The Group uses external rating agency credit grades for
assessing credit risk on these financial assets and these published grades are continuously monitored and
updated.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in consolidated statement of
income.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
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2.3.9

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by an entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in statement of income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own
equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not classified under the following items, are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method: 1) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,
2) held-for trading, or 3) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the
end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised
cost of the instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the ‘other gains and losses’
line item in consolidated statement of income for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, is recognized in consolidated statement of income.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalent are comprised of cash on hand,
demand and time deposits with banks whose original maturities do not exceed three months are classified as
cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Parent and not yet
reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method. Under this method, the
weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in equity. When the treasury
shares are reissued, gains are credited to the “treasury shares reserve”, which is not distributable. Any realised
losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance in that account. Any excess losses
are charged to retained earnings then to the reserves. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue
of bonus shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per
share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Parent is the Kuwaiti Dinar. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Kuwaiti Dinars, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.
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Foreign currency transactions are translated into Kuwaiti Dinars at the rates prevailing on the transaction
date. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Kuwaiti Dinars at the rate of exchange ruling at the
consolidated statement of financial position date. Resultant gains/ losses are taken to consolidated statement
of income. Translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the foreign
operations are translated into Kuwaiti Dinars at the closing rate on the date of the consolidated statement of
financial position and income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates. The resultant exchange
differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and foreign currency
translation reserve under equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in a foreign exchange
translation reserve in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the parent company are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of income. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to noncontrolling interests and
are not recognised in the consolidated statement of income. For all other partial disposals of associates that
do not result in the group losing significant influence, the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to the consolidated statement of income.

Hyperinflationary economy

The financial statements of subsidiary and associates companies whose functional currency is the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy are adjusted for the effect of inflation in accordance with the procedures
described in Note 22 prior to their translation to Kuwaiti Dinars. Subsequently restated, all items of the
financial statements are translated into Kuwaiti Dinars using the closing exchange rate identified using the
publicly available price mechanism. Amounts shown for prior years are not restated at consolidation level as
the presentation currency of the Group is not of a hyperinflationary economy. On consolidation, the effect of
price changes in the prior periods on the financial statements of the subsidiary has been recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies

The financial statements of Group entities whose functional currencies are the currencies of hyperinfiationary
economies are adjusted in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting period.

In the first period of application, the adjustments determined at the beginning of the period are recognized
directly in equity as an adjustment to opening retained earnings. In subsequent periods, the prior period
adjustments related to components of owners' equity and differences arising on translation of comparative
amounts are accounted for in other comprehensive income.

Items in the statement of financial position not already expressed in terms of the measuring unit current at
the reporting period, such as non-monetary items carried at cost or cost less depreciation, are restated by
applying a general price index. The restated cost, or cost less depreciation, of each item is determined by
applying to its historical cost and accumulated depreciation the change in a general price index from the date
of acquisition to the end of the reporting period. An impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income if the restated amount of a nonmonetary item exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
At the beginning of the first period of application, the components of owners' equity, except retained earnings,
are restated by applying 2 general price index from the dates the components were contributed or otherwise
arose. Restated retained earnings are derived from all other amounts in the restated statement of financial
position. At the end of the first period and in subsequent periods, all components of owners' equity are
restated by applying a general price index from the beginning of the period or the date of contribution, if later.
All items recognized in the consolidated statement of income are restated by applying the change in the
general price index from the dates when the items of income and expenses were initially earned or incurred.

Gains or losses on the net monetary position are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

All items in the statement of cash flows are expressed in terms of the general price index at the end of the
reporting period.
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23.12

Post employment benefits

The Group is liable under various labour laws including the Kuwait Labour Law and Labour Laws of the countries
in which the Group’ subsidiaries operates, to make payments under defined benefit plans payable to
employees at cessation of employment.

This liability, which is unfunded, has been computed as the amount payable as a result of involuntary
termination on the statement of financial position date. This computation is used as a reliable approximation
of the present value of this obligation to recognize this liability and the related cost as an expense of the year,

Accounting for leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group assesses whether contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the Contract. The Group recognizes

aright of use asset and a corresponding lease liability on the date on which the lessor makes the asset available

for use by the Group (the commencement date).

On that date, the Group measures the right of use at cost, which comprises of:

« the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability.

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and

e  anestimate of costs to be incurred to restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease as a consequence of having used the underlying asset during a particular
period; this is recognised as part of the cost of the right of use asset when the Group incurs the obligation
for those costs, which may be at the commencement date or as a consequence of having used the asset
during a particular period.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments

that are not paid at that date. On that date, the lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit

in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses

its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in measurement of the lease liability comprise the following payments for the right

to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Payments associated with leases of short term leases and low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line

basis as an expense in consolidated statement of income,

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on

which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the

lease, a provision is recognised and measured under |AS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-

use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce

inventories.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments

made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs.
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Subsequent Measurement

According to usage nature of the leased asset, the Group classifies the asset within a group of related assets.

If the asset meets the definition of real estate investment “IAS 40", the Group measures the asset based on

the accounting policy adopted in measuring real estate investments owned by the Group. However, if the asset

meets the definition of property, plant and equipment, the Group measures the asset as per the accounting

policy adopted in measuring the property, plant and equipment.

Generally, after the commencement date, the Group measures the right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the

asset's useful life and the lease term. The Group determines whether a right of use asset is impaired and

recognizes any impairment loss identified in the consolidated statement of income. The depreciation starts at

the commencement date of the lease.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for an identified

impairment loss.

After the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability by increasing the carrying amount to reflect

interest on the lease liability and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use

asset) whenever:

® The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

e The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a
floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

e A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and the finance cost. The finance cost is charged to

statement income over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period. The constant periodic rate of interest is the discount rate used at the
initial measurement of lease liability.

For a contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components,

the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative

stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Where the Group is the lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating iease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When a contract includes lease and non-lease components, the Company applies IFRS 15 to allocate
consideration under the contract to each component.

Provisions for liabilities
Provisions including provision for warranty costs are recognised, when as a result of past events it is probable

that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle a present legal or constructive obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated.
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2.3.15

2.3.16

2.3.17

Revenue recognition

The Group executes construction projects for the benefit of third parties. Such contracts are entered into
before executing these projects. Under the terms of these contracts, the Group has the right to receive the
payments for any executed works. Therefore, revenues from these contracts shall be recognized throughout
the project duration which is an input method. The stage of completion is measured based on the total costs
incurred as a proportion of the estimated total costs to be performed. The management believes that this
method is appropriate to measure of the progress towards complete satisfaction of all performance
obligations under financial reporting requirements of IFRS 15.

Revenue from installation contracts is recognised over time of the contract.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on point of time.

Interest income is recognised on effective yield basis.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it earns
revenues and incurs costs. The operating segments are used by the management of the Group to allocate
resources and assess performance. Operating segments exhibiting similar economic characteristics, product
and services, class of customers where appropriate are aggregated and reported as reportable segments.

Statutory deductions

KFAS
The Group calculates contribution to KFAS at 1% of profits in accordance with amended calculation based on
a resolution of Foundation’s BOD after disposal of transfer from net profit to Statutory reserve.

NLST

The Group calculates NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and Ministry of Finance’s Resolution No.24
of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit of the year. As per Law, cash dividends of listed companies subjected to NLST
have to be deducted from the profit for the year to determine taxable income.

Zakat
Zakat is calculated at 1% of profits in accordance with the Ministry of Finance resolution No 58. Of 2007.
Calculated Zakat is charged on the consolidated statement of income in accordance with these requirements.

Taxation
The income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred income tax expense.

Taxation is calculated on the basis of the tax rates applicable and prescribed according to the prevailing laws,
regulations and instructions of the countries in which the Group operates. Income tax payable on taxable profit
(‘current tax’) is recognised as an expense in the period in which the profits arise in accordance with the fiscal
regulations of the respective countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and applicable
legislation at the reporting date.
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3.1

(a)

(i)

(i)

(b)

Financial instruments

Financial risk factors

The Group’s use of financial instruments exposes it to a variety of financial risks such as credit risk, market risk
and liquidity risk. The Group continuously reviews its risk exposures and takes measures to limit it to
acceptable levels. Risk management is carried out by a steering committee comprising of senior management
and headed by the chairman. The committee identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with
the Group'’s operating units and provides principles for overall risk management, as well as covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. The
significant risks that the Group is exposed to are discussed below:

Market risk
Market risk, comprising of foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk arises due to
movements in foreign currency rates, interest rates and market prices of assets.

Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has operations outside Kuwait and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the UAE Dirhams. The
following is net foreign currencies positions as at the date of the consolidated financial statements:

2024 2023
UAE Dirhams 1,578,167 1,140,746

Had the USD changed by 10% against the Kuwaiti Dinar, the consolidated financial statements of the Group
would be changed as follows:

2024 2023
Net profit 78,908 57,037

Management has set up a policy to require group companies to manage their foreign exchange risk against
their functional currency. Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency of the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries. The Group’s management monitors and measures currency exposures on recognized
monetary assets and liabilities on a daily basis and manages this risk by setting limits on exposures to each
currency and also to the extent possible by matching monetary assets and liabilities with similar currency
exposures.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the risk that future cash flows or fair values of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from deposits and bank borrowings.

At 31 December 2024, if interest rates at that date had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year would have been lower/higher by KD Zero (KD 25,553 - 2023).

The Group’s overall interest rate risks are monitored and interest rate sensitivity is measured on a daily basis
by the risk management team.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation causing the
other party to incur a financial loss. Financial assets, which potentially subject the Group to credit risk, consist
principally of bank deposits and trade receivables and contract assets. The Group manages this risk by dealing
with government bodies, customers and financial institutions with high credit rating and obtaining guarantee
whenever possible.
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The table below detail the credit rating of the financial assets and contract assets and the maximum exposure

to the credit risk:

31 December 2023
Note Credit rating Method Gross ECL NBV
Internal External used amount
Trade receivables 9 (ii) N/A Lifetime 15,507,987 (6,598,591) 8,909,396
Retention receivable 9 (ii) N/A Lifetime 11,767,870 (3,182,386) 8,585,484
Contract assets 10 (i) N/A Lifetime
ECL 3,276,149 - 3,276,149
Cash and cash 11 performing Aa3 12-month
equivalents /Baa3 ECL 7,292,795 (4,543) 7,288,252
31 December 2024
Note Credit rating Method Gross ECL NBV
Internal External used amount
Trade receivables 9 (ii) N/A Lifetime
ECL 14,481,247 (6,650,435) 7,830,812
Retention receivables 9 (ii) N/A Lifetime
ECL 10,542,912 (3,170,994) 7,371,918
Contract assets 10 (i) N/A Lifetime
ECL 197,148 - 197,148
Cash and cash 11 performing Aa3 12-month
equivalents /Baa3 ECL 13,252,338 (4,543) 13,247,795

0}
credit losses is immaterial.

(ii)

Although contract assets are subject to impairment testing in accordance with IFRS 8, the impact of expected

The Group has applied the simplified approach of IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL for trade

receivable, retention receivable and contract assets. The Group determines the expected credit losses on these
items by using a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due
status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic

conditions.
The following table shows the calculation of credit losses:
31 December 2023
Aging backets of trade Gross carrying amount Expected credit Lifetime ECL
receivables at default loss rate
Less than 30 days 4,054,874 0.41% 16,682
31-60days 1,987,906 1.28% 25,457
61 —90 days 162,232 6.95% 11,273
91 - 120 days 376,611 8.93% 33,632
121 - 150 days 72,670 16.08% 11,688
151 - 180 days 103,522 13.61% 14,094
181 - 210 days 182,194 26.37% 48,046
211 - 240 days 54,182 21.22% 11,500
240 days and above 8,513,796 75.48% 6,426,219
15,507,987 6,598,591
31 December 2023
Retention Receivable gross carrying amount Expected credit Lifetime ECL
at default loss rate
Retention not due 8,666,875 0.94% 81,391
Retention due 3,100,995 100% 3,100,995
11,767,870 3,182,386
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Aging brackets of post-paid gross carrying amount Expected credit Lifetime ECL
trade receivables at default loss rate
Less than 30 days 3,206,699 0.47% 15,231
31-60 days 177,551 4.54% 8,054
61 -90 days 384,168 2.67% 10,258
91 -120 days 1,047,995 13.95% 146,237
121 - 150 days 664,110 19.99% 132,724
151 - 180 days 1,093,106 15.79% 172,623
181 —210 days 81,302 15.93% 12,953
211 - 240 days 107,664 23.12% 24,892
240 days and above 7,718,651 79.39% 6,127,463
14,481,247 6,650,435
31 December 2024
Retention receivables gross carrying amount Expected credit Lifetime ECL
at default loss rate
Retention not due 7,452,915 1.09% 80,997
Retention due 3,089,997 100% 3,089,997
10,542,912 3,170,994
Movement of provision for expected credit loss of trade and other receivables are as follows:
2024 2023
Balance as at 1 January 9,780,977 9,780,856
Expected credit loss provided during the year 52,199 -
Foreign exchange translation (11,747) 121
Balance as at 31 December 9,821,429 9,780,977
(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its funding requirements. Liquidity risk
management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding from an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the consolidated statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying values, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
Less than Between 1 Total
1year and 2 years
At 31 December 2024
Trade payables and other credit balances 12,957,104 - 12,957,104
Lease liabilities 139,950 150,659 290,609
At 31 December 2023
Trade payables and other credit balances 14,933,355 - 14,933,355
Lease liabilities 171,900 189,218 361,118
3.2 Capital risk management

31 December 2024

The Group manages its capital to ensure that” entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance,

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash and cash equivalents) and
equity (comprising share capital, reserves, retained earnings and treasury shares).
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Fair value estimation

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

e Level one:Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level two:Quoted prices in an active market for similar instruments. Quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in market that is not active. Inputs other than quoted prices that are cbservabie for assets and
liabilities.

e Level three: Inputs for the asset or liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities approximately equal its book value as at the

consolidated financial statements date.

Critical accounting judgments and estimates

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the Management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the assets recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification of real estate investments

Management decides on acquisition of real estate whether it should be classified as held for trading or
investment property.

The Group classifies property as held for trading if this is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary course of
the business.

The Group classifies property as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental income or for capital
appreciation.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the consolidated financial statements date that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value measurements and valuation techniques

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are measured at fair value for the purposes of preparing the
consolidated financial statements. The Group’s management determines the main appropriate techniques and
inputs required for measuring the fair value. In determining the fair value of assets and liabilities, management
uses observable market data as appropriate, in case no observable market data is available the Group uses an
external valuer qualified to do the valuation. Information regarding the required valuation techniques and
inputs used to determine the fair value of financial assets and liabilities is disclosed in note (3.3 and 6).

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group reviews its non-financial assets periodically to assess whether a provision for impairment should be
recorded in the consolidated statement of income. In particular, considerable judgment by management is
required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of
provisions required. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving
varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty. Note 5 sets out the impact thereof on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses whether the credit risk associated with financial assets and other items has increased
substantially since the initial recognition in order to determine whether the expected credit loss for the
12 month period or expected credit loss over the lifetime of the financial instrument should be recognized
(Note 3.1).

Impairment of associates

Impairment testing of the associate is carried out when there is an indication of such impairment. Impairment
is assessed for the entire carrying value of the Group’s investment in the associate including goodwill,
therefore no impairment study for goodwill is required independently.

Revenue recognition

Construction contract revenue is measured over the life of the project according to the percentage of
completion method. The Group’s management are required to exercise judgement in their assessment of the
work performed, variation order; the completeness and accuracy of forecast costs to complete. The actual
results of contracts can vary substantially. These estimates often need to be adjusted based on future events
and when the results of items that were judged uncertain.

Warranty and commissioning provisions

The Group’s management estimates the related provision for warranty and commissioning based on historical
warranty claim and commissioning cost information, as well as recent trends that might suggest that past cost
information may differ from future claims. Factors that could impact the estimated warranty claim and
commissioning cost include the success of Group’s productivity and quality initiatives, as well as spare parts
and labour costs (Note 14).

Hyperinflation

The Group exercises significant judgement in determining the onset of hyperinflation in countries in which it
operates and whether the functional currency of its subsidiaries or associates is the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy.

Various characteristics of the economic environment of each country are taken into account. These
characteristics include, but are not limited to, whether:

*  The general population prefers to keep its wealth in non-monetary assets or in a relatively stable foreign
currency;

= Prices are quoted in a relatively stable foreign currency;

= Sales or purchase prices take expected losses of purchasing power during short credit period into
account;

* Interest rates, wages and prices are linked to a price index; and

*  The cumulative inflation rate over three years is approaching, or exceeds, 100%.

Management exercises judgement as to when a restatement of the financial statements of a Group entity
becomes necessary. Following management's assessment, the Group's subsidiary & associates in Republic of
Lebanon have been accounted for as an entity operating in hyperinflationary economy. The results, cash flows
and financial positions of its subsidiary and associate have been expressed in terms of the measuring units
current at the reporting date.
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5; Property, plant and equipment
Lands & Vehicles Equipment & Furniture Total
buildings Heavy & fixtures
Equipment
Cost
As at 1 January 2023 12,431,603 6,505,380 11,899,725 1,761,622 32,598,330
Additions 137,412 178,525 1,041,085 62,486 1,418,508
Disposals - (111,321) (32,785) (10,379) (154,485)
As at 31 December 2023 12,569,015 6,572,584 12,908,025 1,813,729 33,863,353
Additions 872,232 101,459 738,129 28,226 1,740,046
Disposals (52,653) (379,146) (1,675,007) (50,571) (2,157,377)
As at 31 December 2024 13,388,594 6,294,897 11,971,147 1,791,384 33,446,022
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2023 6,396,876 6,055,690 11,100,465 1,454,566 25,007,601
Charge for the year 498,944 298,867 1,270,701 129,636 2,198,148
Disposals - (97,306) (9,658) (10,342) (117,306)
As at 31 December 2023 6,895,820 6,257,251 12,361,512 1,573,860 27,088,443
Charge for the year 462,130 171,116 716,399 97,758 1,447,403
Disposals (50,333) (360,638) (1,673,684) (49,420) (2,134,075)
Impairment 331,100 - - - 331,100
As at 31 December 2024 7,638,717 6,067,729 11,404,227 1,622,198 26,732,871
Net book value (Before adjustments
generated from Hyperinflation)
As at 31 December 2023 __ 5673195 315333 546,513 239,869 6,774,910
As at 31 December 2024 5,749,877 227,168 566,920 169,186 6,713,151
Hyperinflation adjustments (Note 22)
Effect as at 31 December 2022 138,293 145 (22,699) (43,261) 72,478
Change in carrying value 4,335,527 - 560,807 510,896 5,407,230
Depreciation adjustments (1,959,360) - (498,747) (444,610) (2,902,717)
;g;j;%;g‘;‘&f“‘y transiation (1,799,063) 39 (13,328)  (55,216) (1,867,568)
Effect as at 31 December 2023 715,397 184 26,033 (32,191) 709,423
Change in carrying value 1,206,564 157,777 127,501 1,491,842
Depreciation adjustments (537,779) (142,769) (92,352) (772,900)
Foreign currency translation
adjustments 35,091 36 642 871 36,640
Effect as at 31 December 2024 1,419,273 220 41,683 3,829 1,465,005
Adjusted net carrying amount as at
31 December 2023 6,388,592 315,517 572,546 207,678 7,484,333
Adjusted net carrying amount as at
31 December 2024 7,169,150 227,388 608,603 173,015 8,178,156

- Lands and buildings include leasehold lands leased from the Government of Kuwait with an amount of KD
2,394,972 as at 31 December 2024 (1,922,693 — 2023), on which buildings are constructed with a carrying
value of KD 1,028,062 as at 31 December 2024 (KD 1,162,851 —2023).

As a lessee, the Group has leased many assets, including buildings and lands. The average period of the
leased buildings and leased lands are 5 years. The impact resulting from the application of IFRS 16 has been
recorded under lands and buildings.

- Property, plant and equipment include hotel in Lebanon, the related net book value amounted to KD 4.4
Million approximately as at 31 December 2024 (KD 3.8 Million — 2023). The hotel incurred losses due to the
continued effect of the Lebanese liquidity crises, in addition to the other factor disclosed in note 24 which is
an indication of impairment. Management of the group, with the assistance of an independent valuer,
determined the recoverable value of the hotel. The Group management concluded that the restated net
carrying value after applying IAS 29 is less than the hotel’s recoverable amount and accordingly no
impairment has been recorded for the year ended 31 December 2024 (Nil — 2023). The recoverable value of
the hotel was determined in accordance with the fair value less cost to sell. The determination of the fair
value less cost to sell assumes the conversion of the hotel to office spaces “which is the highest and best use
of the property”. The fair value of the office spaces was identified using the market comparable approach,
and the Group's assessment of the cost to sell include the conversion of the hotel to office spaces.
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The management of the group recorded an impairment of a plot of land with an amount of KD 331,100 in
the consolidated statement of income. The fair value of the land was identified using the value to sell method
based on valuations carried out by independent valuers not related to the Group using the comparable

market
6. Investment properties
The below table is the investment properties movement during the year:
2024 2023
Balance as at 1 January 7,171,672 6,984,821
Additions 23,235 -
Changes in fair value 3,339,122 186,851
Balance as at 31 December 10,534,029 7,171,672

- The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2024 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by independent valuer not related to the Group.
The independent valuer is registered at the related governmental bodies, and he has appropriate and
recent experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The fair value of properties held
for trading was determined based using either the market comparable approach or the capitalized income
approach (Level 2 and 3).

- In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
- There has been no change to the valuation technique during the year.

- The property rental income earned by the group from its investment property, all of which is leased out
under operating leases, amounted to 582,929 (509,272 as of 31 December 2023).

v 3 Investment in associates
Activities Ownership % 2024 2023
Spears 1788 Group S.A.L. Holding - Real Estate 40 1,410,127 1,528,864
Other 136,423 136,423

1,546,550 1,665,287

Below table showing the results of associate during the year:

2024 2023
Balance as at 1 January 1,665,287 1,768,204
Share of results (233,062) (16,305)
Capital increase 52,184 -
Dividends received - (65,373)
Translation differences including effect of hyperinflation 62,141 (21,239)
Balance as at 31 December 1,546,550 1,665,287
Summarized financial information of Spears 1788 Group S.A.L. as at 31 December is as follows:

2024 2023
Current assets 22,581 4,287
Non-current assets 6,528,001 6,275,015
Current liabilities 3,025,264 2,457,144

8. Inventories

2024 2023
Raw materials 2,142,514 2,454,379
Spare parts 1,385,248 1,380,287

3,527,762 3,834,666

Provision for obsolescence (349,999) (350,872)

3,177,763 3,483,794

The cost of inventories recognized as expenses during the year in respect of cost of sales was KD 6,336,347 as
at 31 Dec 2024 (2023: KD 5,005,286).
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9, Trade receivables and other debit balances
2024 2023
Trade receivables 14,481,247 15,507,987
Retention receivables 10,542,912 11,767,870
25,024,159 27,275,857
Expected credit loss (9,821,429) (9,780,977)
15,202,730 17,494,880
Advance to suppliers 1,354,993 3,637,571
Other debit balances 387,564 331,400

16,945,287 21,463,851

The ECL has been estimated in accordance with the simplified approach as per IFRS 9 (Note 3.1).

The Group holds letter of guarantee and letters of credit amounting to KD 343,000 as collaterals (KD 243,000
—2023).

During the year, the Group received an amount of 446,873 Kuwaiti dinars out of a total amount of 1,627,879
Kuwaiti dinars which represent retention receivable due to the group from a customer pursuant to the ruling

issued in favor of the group by the Court of Appeal. That ruling was appealed by both parties. The amount
collected was recorded as collection from retention (note 14) until the finalization of all legal stages.

10. Contracts assets / liabilities

2024 2023
Construction costs incurred plus recognized profits less recognized losses to
date 67,781,295 63,583,439
Less: progress billings (69,774,118)  (62,175,037)

(1,992,823) 1,408,402

Recognized and included in the consolidated financial statements as amounts:
- Contracts assets 197,148 3,276,149
- Contracts liabilities (2,189,971) (1,867,747)
(1,992,823) 1,408,402
- The Group recognises contract assets for executed works that have not yet been invoiced to customers.
These amounts will subsequently be transferred to trade receivables upon issuing invoices to the
customers.

- Contract liabilities represent amounts collected from customers in excess of the revenues recognised to
date, according to the percentage of completion method.

11. Cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023
Current and call accounts 5,792,342 3,302,986
Time deposits 7,455,453 3,985,266
Cash on hand 51,678 54,045

13,299,473 7,342,297
The average interest rate on the deposits was 3.85% to 3.9% as at 31 December 2024 (3.2% to 4.0% - 2023).

12. Equity

Share capital

On 6 May 2024, the extraordinary assembly meeting of the company’s shareholders approved an increase in
the authorised, issued, and paid-up capital from KD 12,162,908 (comprising 121,629,083 shares) to KD
13,014,312 (comprising 130,143,118 shares) by issuing 8,514,035 bonus shares amounting to KD 851,404. The
commercial register was amended on 21 May 2024.

The authorised, issued, and paid-up share capital of the Parent Company amounted to KD 13,014,312,
comprising 130,143,118 shares of 100 fils each as of 31 December 2024 (KD 12,162,908 comprises of
121,629,083 shares as of 31 December 2023) and all shares are in cash.
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13.

14,

Treasury shares
2024 2023
Number of shares 3,177,752 2,944,756
Percentage of issued shares % 244 2.42
Market value (KD) 1,077,258 686,128

The Parent Company is required to retain reserves and retained earnings equivalent to the value of treasury
shares throughout the year, during which they are held by the Parent Company, pursuant to instructions of
the relevant regulatory authorities.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Companies Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, and by virtue of a
decision by the Ordinary General Assembly based on the BOD's proposal, a percentage not less than 10% of
the profits shall be transferred annually to the statutory reserve. The General Assembly may discontinue such
deduction if the statutory reserve exceeds half of the Parent Company paid up capital.

Voluntary reserve

In accordance with the Companies Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, and by virtue of a
decision by the Ordinary General Assembly based on the BOD's proposal, a percentage not less than 10% of
the net profits may be transferred to provide the voluntary reserve for the purpose specified by the General
Assembly.

Other reserves
Treasury Foreign Total
share reserve currency
translation
reserve
Balance as at 1 January 2023 585,174 2,282,446 2,867,620
Total other comprehensive income items - 506,096 506,096
Balance as at 31 December 2023 585,174 2,788,542 3,373,716
Balance as at 1 lanuary 2024 585,174 2,788,542 3,373,716
Total other comprehensive income items - 839,254 839,254
Balance as at 31 December 2024 585,174 3,627,796 4,212,970
Trade payables and other credit balances
2024 2023

Trade payables 6,088,602 6,623,434
Contract advances — construction 2,237,872 3,639,185
Provisions for warranty and maintenance 1,924,763 2,757,252
Accrued to staff 866,786 884,680
Accrued expense 283,242 194,049
Lease contracts liabilities 139,950 171,900
Cash dividends 81,559 146,870
Contribution to Zakat 44,917 12,827
Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS) 40,426 23,422
Contribution to National Labour Support Tax (NLST) 112,294 32,067
Other credit balances 439,552 447,669
collection from retention (note 9) 416,514 -
Deferred tax liability 280,627

12,957,104 14,933,355

Lease liabilities related to right of use assets as follows:

2024 2023
Lease contracts liabilities — current
Amounts due within 12 months 139,950 171,900
Lease contracts liabilities — non-current
Amounts due after 12 months 150,659 189,218

290,609 361,118
The movement on the provision for warranty, maintenance and others is as
follows:

2024 2023

Opening Balance 2,757,252 4,091,267
Provided - 194,000
Used (832,489) (647,065)
Reversal - (880,950)

Closing Balance 1,924,763 2,757,252
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15.

16.

17.

18,

19.

20.

Provisions for the warranty and maintenance were provided to meet the obligations of the executed and
delivered construction works to the customers in accordance with contracts. The provision made represents
management’s best estimate taking into consideration the expected cost to fulfil the obligation during the
specified period.

Revenue
The Group's revenues arise from construction, installation, maintenance and sale of goods mainly in Kuwait:
Timing of revenue recognition 2024 2023
Construction Contracts Over time 30,952,928 23,309,957
Sales of goods Point of time 5,960,509 5,729,980
Installation and maintenance Over time 2,683,764 2,760,635
39,597,201 31,800,572

Revenues from construction contracts include revenues of KD 25,342,532 (KD 14,320,501 - 2023) realized from
contracts with government entities in the State of Kuwait.

The transaction price allocated to performance obligation not yet fulfilled as at 31 December 2024 is
KD 64,766,872 (2023 — KD 54,778,018).

Cost of sales
2024 2023

Subcontract costs 18,896,927 11,209,428
Materials 5,384,983 5,534,165
Staff costs 4,603,899 5,328,942
Lease rentals 2,812,510 1,423,304
Oil & Fuel 1,899,710 1,968,294
Depreciation and amortization 1,114,760 1,213,916
Repairs and maintenance 306,568 419,845
Others 1,263,811 1,467,691

36,283,168 28,565,585

Net other operating income

2024 2023
Interest Income 223,096 176,757
closing of credit balances 263,855 -
Foreign exchange gains 161,414 63,737
Others (4,754) (10,627)
643,611 229,867
(Provide) /Reversal of provisions and impairment
2024 2023
Reversal of provision for warranty, maintenance and others - 686,950
Expected credit losses — (note 3.1) (52,199) -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 5) (331,100) -
(383,299) 686,950
General and administrative expenses
2024 2023
Salaries and wages 1,278,567 1,228,462
Depreciation and amortization 156,612 169,280
Lease rentals 36,272 34,692
Repairs and maintenance 32,167 28,273
Others 558,376 408,373

2,061,994 1,869,080

Net gain from investment properties

2024 2023
Rents revenue 582,929 509,272
Less: Rents expenses (177,199) (269,697)
Net rental income 405,730 239,575
change in fair value of investment properties 3,339,122 186,851

3,744,852 426,426
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21. Earnings per share
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year.
The weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is calculated as follows:

2024 2023
Weighted average number of issued and fully paid-up shares 130,143,118 130,143,118
Less: weighted average number of treasury shares (3,174,711) (3,174,711)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 126,968,407 126,968,407
Net profit for the year 4,246,104 2,486,153
Earnings per share (fils) 33.44 19.58

Earning per share for current and comparative period has been adjusted taking into consideration the effect
of bonus shares issued during the current year (note 23).

22. HYPERINFLATION ADJUSTMENT

IAS 29 requires that financial statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy be stated
in terms of @ measuring unit current at the statement of financial position date and that comparative figures
for prior periods be stated in the same terms to the latest statement of financial position date. This has been
applied in Tameer Lebanon Holding Company (subsidiary) and Spears 1788 Group SAL (associate), and the
restatement effect has been calculated by means of conversion factors derived from the Consumer Price Index
(CPI) provided by The Central Administration of Statistics, Republic of Lebanon. The conversion factors used to
restate the financial statements of the subsidiary are as follows:

Year Index Conversion factor
31-Dec-24 7,061 1.00
31-Dec-23 5,978 1,18
31-Dec-22 2,045 3.45
31-Dec-21 921 7.67
31-Dec-20 284 24.86
31-Dec-19 115 61.40
31-Dec-18 108 65.38
31-Dec-17 104 67.89
31-Dec-16 99 71.32
31-Dec-15 96 73.55
31-Dec-14 99 71.32
31-Dec-13 131 53.90
31-Dec-12 129 54.74
31-Dec-11 118 59.84
31-Dec-10 114 61.94
31-Dec-09 109 64.78

The above-mentioned restatement has been accounted for as follows:

i. Financial statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy are stated after applying the
measuring unit current at the statement of financial position date and corresponding figures for the previous
period are stated on the same basis. Monetary assets and liabilities are not restated because they are already
expressed in terms of the monetary unit current at the statement of financial position date. Monetary items
are money held and items to be recovered or paid in money;

ii. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are not carried at amounts current at the statement of financial
position date and components of shareholders’ equity are restated by applying the relevant conversion
factors;
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jii. Comparative financial statements are restated using general inflation indices in terms of the measuring unit
current at the statement of financial position date.

iv. The effect on the net monetary position of the Group is included in the consolidated statement of income
as a monetary gain or loss from hyperinflation

The impact of hyperinflation is allocated as follows:

2024 2023
Net Monetary loss from hyperinflation - consolidated statement of income (2,533) (14,274)
Impact of restatement of corresponding figures - Other comprehensive
income 826,964 510,720
Total impact of hyperinflation 824,431 496,446

23! Dividends

-On 6 May 2024, the ordinary and extraordinary general assembly meeting of shareholders was held and
approved the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, also approved the
below:

= Board of Directors' remuneration of KD 48,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023.

= Distributing of 15 files as cash dividends for the year ended 31 December 2023 (after deducting treasury
shares).

= Bonus share of 7% equal to 8,514,035 shares.

-On 16 March 2025, the Board of Directors proposed cash dividends of 15 Fils per share (after deduction of
treasury shares) for the year ended 31 December 2024. In addition to 5 % bonus shares. The Board also
proposed BOD remuneration to members of KD 48,000. These proposals are subject to approval from the
General Assembly of the Parent Company and the competent authorities.

24, Operating Segment
Information regarding the Group’s operating segments is set out below in accordance with IFRS 8 “Operating
Segments”. IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the “Executive management” who are the Chief
Operating decision-makers in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance. The
Group CEO is identified as a chief operating decision maker for the Group.

The management of the Group assessed the Group into three key business units: Construction, installation and
maintenance, Investment of surplus funds and hotels. These businesses are the basis on which the Group
reports its primary segment information to the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance. The Construction, installation and maintenance primarily
engages in the Construction, installation and maintenance works, maintenance for clients in the market. The
Investment of surplus funds is related to investments in associates and investments properties. Also, Hotels
activities for rental income and assets based operations activities. The above segments are the basis on which
the Group reports its segment information. Transactions between segments are conducted at estimated
market rates on an arm’s length basis and eliminated on consolidation.

Segment results include revenue and expenses directly attributable to a segment.

Segment assets and liabilities comprise those operating assets and liabilities that are directly attributable to
the segment. Capital expenditure represents the total cost incurred during the year to acquire assets that are
expected to be used for periods exceeding one year.
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25.

Segment information:

Construction, Investments Hotels Unallocated Total
Year ended installation &
31 December 2024 maintenance
Operating income 39,597,203 3,725,553 378,857 611,848 44,313,461
Operating expenses (36,330,602) (839,520) (594,000) (2,303,235)  (40,067,357)
Net profit for the year 3,266,601 2,886,033 (215,143) (1,651,387) 4,246,104
Assets 35,519,926 12,080,579 4,539,793 1,739,562 53,879,860
Liabilities 16,352,167 448,225 84,001 1,510,798 18,395,191
Construction, Investments Hotels Unallocated Total
Year ended installation, &
31 December 2023 maintenance
Operating income 32,681,522 710,570 467,752 209,781 34,069,625
Operating expenses (28,758,294) (274,880) (557,992) _ (1,991,306)  (31,583,472)
Net profit for the year 3,922,228 435,690 (90,240)  (1,781,525) 2,486,153
Assets 37,349,279 8,836,959 3,960,855 1,741,929 51,889,022
Liabilities 18,175,630 120,112 54,744 1,352,515 19,703,001

Revenues from major products and services
The group’s revenues from its major products and services are disclosed in note 15.

Geographical information

The group’s revenue from external customers and information about its segment assets (non-current assets
excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and other financial assets) by geographical location are
detailed below:

Revenue Assets
2024 2023 2024 2023
Kuwait 38,942,420 31,791,520 34,669,370 36,897,684
United Arab Emirates 3,737,522 713,571 11,095,190 7,548,142
Oman 1,033,569 1,083,478 1,032,953 1,037,978
Lebanon 599,950 481,056 7,067,388 6,386,095
Other - - 14,959 19,123
44,313,461 34,069,625 53,879,860 51,889,022

During the current year, a military conflict between Israel and Hezbollah occurred in southern Lebanon. The
Group s closely monitoring the situation in Lebanon and its potential impact on their business. The recoverable
amount of the underlying assets is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss (note 5).

Related party transactions

The Group enters into transaction with related parties on terms and conditions approved by management.
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

In the normal course of business the Group enters into transactions with related parties, (i.e. companies owned
by shareholders and directors). Terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.
Details of related parties balances and transactions other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements are as follows:

Balances:
2023

Post employment benefits
Due from related parties
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Transactions:

2024 2023

Revenues 682,548 783,867

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 653,456 646,529

Termination benefits 36,397 26,794

Board of Directors remuneration 48,000 48,000

26. Subsidiaries

Percentage of

Subsidiary Ownership (%)

2024 2023
KCPC Construction (L.L.C) - Dubai, United Arab Emirates 90 90
Prime 28 Limited - Dubai, United Arab Emirates 100 100
Mass International —Oman 70 70
KCPC - Qatar W.L.L - Qatar 50 50
Grey Lines Company O.P.C — Kuwait 100 100
Technical Kuwaiti Company for Elevators, Escalators & Contracting O.P.C - Kuwait 100 100
Tameer Holding Company S.A.L — Lebanon 100 100
Maamel Real Estate O.P.C — Kuwait 100 100
Tamara for Agriculture Contracting Company O.P.C. — Kuwait 100 100
Al.Maamel International Contracting Company — KSA 100 100

Subsidiaries total assets consolidated in the consolidated financial statements amounted to KD 19,208,779 as
at 31 December 2024 (KD 15,137,047 - 2023) and its net profit amounted to KD 3,003,918 (net profits
KD 922,648 - 2023).

The management relied on Management account of subsidiaries with a total asset amounted to
KD 14,959 as at 31 December 2024 (KD 852,459-2023) in preparing the consolidated financial statement.

The objectives of the subsidiaries are to engage in contracting activities and ownership of real estate and land.

Residual interests in subsidiaries incorporated in Kuwait are held through nominees, residual interests in
subsidiaries incorporated outside Kuwait are held through letters of assignment.

27. Commitments and contingent liabilities
The Group has the following commitments and contingent liabilities:
2024 2023
Commitments
Letters of credit 221,974 1,422,531

Contingent liabilities
Letters of guarantee 58,865,350 51,301,244




